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Case No.: 3:16-cv-01735-D 
 

 
RECEIVER’S MOTION TO SUBSUME CERTAIN ASSETS INTO THE 

RECEIVERSHIP ESTATE FOR LIQUIDATION 
 

 
Thomas L. Taylor III (“Receiver”), temporary receiver appointed in the above-styled civil 

action, moves the Court for an order subsuming certain assets seized from Defendant Christopher 

A. Faulkner (“Faulkner”) upon his arrest (“Seized Assets”) into the Receivership Estate so that 

they may be liquidated for the benefit of Estate claimants. The Seized Assets currently are secured 

by the Receiver in a segregated bank safe deposit box pursuant to a previous order of this Court. 

ECF No. 390. 

 

A. Background 

On June 18, 2018, Faulkner was arrested at Los Angeles International Airport while 

attempting to board a flight to London, England. At the time of his arrest, law enforcement agents 

seized items in Faulkner’s possession, including the following (“Seized Assets”):  

• One Vacheron Constantin No. 143 Luxury Wristwatch; 

• $10,726 in U.S. paper currency; 

• Ten one-ounce gold bars; 

• One one-gram gold bar, contained on a blue wallet-sized card; and 
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• Six gold coins. 

On September 6, 2018 the Receiver filed a motion [ECF No. 313] (“Turnover Motion”) 

seeking the turnover of these assets from the FBI and to be held in a segregated bank safe deposit 

box by the Receiver until further order of this Court. Thereafter, Carole A. Faulkner (“Carole”) 

filed a response in opposition [ECF No. 323] (“Response”) purportedly as counsel for non-party 

First Capital Gold, Inc. (“FCG”). In that Response Carole asserted that Faulkner was arrested at 

the beginning of an overseas business trip for FCG and that the paper currency, one-ounce gold 

bars, and gold coins in Faulkner’s possession belonged to FCG.1 This assertion was supported by 

a declaration by Earl Davenport (“Davenport”), FCG’s chief executive officer. ECF No. 323-1.2 

However, on January 7, 2019, Davenport initiated contact with the Receiver and informed 

him, inter alia, that (a) Carole no longer represented FCG, (b) Davenport had verbally instructed 

Carole not to file his September 26, 2018 declaration in support of FCG’s Response, (c) contrary 

to the declaration filed by Carole FCG never owned the gold or cash in Faulkner's possession at 

the time of his arrest, and (d) it was Davenport’s understanding that those assets were owned by 

Faulkner and/or Carole. Decl. of Receiver [ECF No. 377-1] at ¶¶3 – 5. Accordingly, the Receiver 

filed a Motion to Strike the Response. ECF No. 377. 

On January 16, 2019, the Court granted the Turnover Motion. ECF No. 390. The Receiver 

subsequently took possession of the Seized Assets from the FBI and secured them in a segregated 

bank safe deposit box. The Receiver now asks the Court to enter an order subsuming these assets 

into the Receivership Estate so that the Receiver may liquidate them for the benefit of claimants.  

 
1 FCG did not assert any ownership interest in the Vacheron Constantin No. 143 Luxury Wristwatch or the 
one-gram gold bar. See Response, at p. 4. 
2 Faulkner also advanced this “business trip” theory in his parallel criminal case, USA v. Faulkner, 3:18-cr-
00500-B, in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division (“Criminal 
Case”).  
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B. Argument and Authority 

This Court has taken “exclusive jurisdiction and possession of the Receivership Assets, of 

whatever kind and wherever situated.” ECF No. 496 (“Receivership Order”), at ¶1. The 

Receivership Assets include “all assets—in any form or of any kind whatsoever—owned, 

controlled, managed, or possessed by” Faulkner. Id., at p. 1.  

The Seized Assets are Receivership Assets and the Court should permit the Receiver to 

liquidate them for the ultimate benefit of Estate claimants. As an initial matter, the Seized Assets 

were within Faulkner’s possession and control at the time of his arrest. See, e.g., Exhibit A hereto, 

Memorandum Opinion and Order, Criminal Case, ECF No. 20 (“Detention Order”), at p. 4 (“When 

arrested, Faulkner was carrying 10 one-once gold bars, gold coins, $10,726.00 in cash, two brand-

new cell phones, and his birth certificate”). 

Additionally, and contrary to assertions made by Carole before this Court in the Response, 

evidence shows that the Seized Assets did not belong to FCG. ECF No. 377-1.3 Faulkner also 

asserted FCG’s ownership of some Seized Assets in his parallel Criminal Case with respect to his 

detention hearing, but no representative of FCG appeared or otherwise corroborated this dubious 

claim. See Detention Order, at p. 4 (“Faulkner presented a private investigator as his [only] 

witness”). This Court found in the Criminal Case that the “evidence … strongly suggests that 

Faulkner was arrested while attempting to flee,” id., at p. 7, relying on evidence that “Faulkner 

was arrested in possession of a substantial amount of cash, gold, two newly-purchased phones, and 

his birth certificate.” Id., at p. 7 – 8. In other words, the Court -- at minimum -- inferred that the 

Seized Assets were Faulkner’s and that he was not going to return with them to the United States.4 

 
3 Ownership of the Vacheron Constantin No. 143 Luxury Wristwatch and the one-gram gold bar are not in 
dispute. 
4 This Court in the Criminal Case also found, with respect to Faulkner’s attempt to flee, that “[g]iven Carole 
and Faulkner’s history of working together in various schemes, the court finds credible the government’s 
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Finally, FCG “has been completely wound up and is dissolved” for over two years. Exhibit 

B hereto, Certificate of Dissolution dated October 7, 2019, California Secretary of State. It cannot 

claim ownership of the Seized Assets because it no longer exists. Moreover, FCG has not 

attempted to file any claim with the Receiver with respect to the Seized Assets or any other assets, 

and any such claim is now barred as untimely. See Order Implementing Plan of Distribution, ECF 

No. 542, at 2 (establishing a claim bar date of Friday, October 30, 2020). 

 

C. Requested Relief 

The Seized Assets are Receivership Assets. The Receiver asks the Court to enter an order 

permitting the Receiver to subsume the Seized Assets into the Receivership Estate, so that they 

may be liquidated in conformity with the Receivership Order5. 

 

Dated: October 11, 2021 Respectfully submitted, 
 
  

THE TAYLOR LAW OFFICES, PC 
 
Thomas L. Taylor III, Receiver 
Texas Bar: 19733700 
taylor@tltaylorlaw.com 
 
245 West 18th Street 
Houston, Texas 77008 
Tel: 713.626.5300 
Fax: 713.402.6154 
 
 
 

 
evidence that Carole has been conspiring with Faulkner to amass assets in Lebanon.” Id., at p. 7. The Seized 
Assets were among those which Faulkner and Carole sought to amass in Lebanon. 
5 “The Receiver may, without further order of this court, … dispose of any Receivership Assets, other than 
real estate, in the ordinary course of business, on terms and in the manner the Receiver deems most 
beneficial to the Receivership Estate, and with due regard to the realization of the true and proper value of 
such Receivership Assets.” Receivership Order, at ¶37. 
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GOFORTH LAW, PLLC 
  
By:        

 
Andrew M. Goforth 
Texas State Bar: 24076405 
andrew@goforth.law 
 
7614 Fairdale Lane 
Houston, Texas 77063 
Tel: (713) 464-2263 
Fax: (713) 583-1762 
 
COUNSEL FOR RECEIVER 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

I certify that on October 11, 2021 I filed the foregoing document through this Court’s 
CM/ECF case management system, which served notice on all parties and counsel of record 
electronically.  

 
I further certify that on October 11, 2021 I served the foregoing document on Earl 

Davenport of FCG at his last known email address (ndavenport@firstcapitalgold.com) and by U.S. 
Mail to FCG at 3475 Carmona Ave., Los Angeles, CA 90016, the address last listed for its principal 
business office and registered agent with the California Secretary of State. 
 
  

  /s/  Andrew M. Goforth 
  Andrew M. Goforth 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

DALLAS DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,     §
    §

Plaintiff,     §
    § No. 3:18-MJ-407-BT

VS.     § 
    §

CHRISTOPHER A. FAULKNER,     §
    §

Defendant.     §

MEMORANDUM OPINION
           AND ORDER

Defendant Christopher A. Faulkner (“Faulkner”) moves pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

§ 3145(b) to revoke the magistrate judge’s order directing that he be detained pending trial. 

Plaintiff United States of America (the “government”) opposes the motion.  Following de

novo review of the evidence presented at the detention hearing conducted by the magistrate

judge,1 and for the reasons that follow, the court denies Faulkner’s motion and orders that

he be detained pending trial.

I

Faulkner is charged in a criminal complaint with committing securities fraud, in

violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 77q(a) and 77x; mail fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341; and

1“In reviewing a magistrate judge’s order of pretrial release, the district court acts de
novo and makes an independent determination of whether release is proper.”  United States
v. Arias, 119 F.3d 2, 1997 WL 367860, at *2 (5th Cir. June 12, 1997) (unpublished table
decision) (citing United States v. Rueben, 974 F.2d 580, 585 (5th Cir. 1992); 18 U.S.C.
§ 3145(a)(1)).  The court’s review of the record developed before the magistrate judge is an
appropriate procedure to comply with that obligation.  See, e.g., United States v. Farguson,
721 F. Supp 128, 129 n.1 (N.D. Tex. 1989) (Fitzwater, J.).
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engaging in illegal monetary transactions, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1957.  The government

alleges that these charges stem from a seven-year fraudulent oil and gas investment scheme

in which Faulkner purported to sell working interests to investors.  Faulkner allegedly

underpaid these investors’ returns and obtained these funds for his own use.  The complaint

was filed on June 15, 2018, and Faulkner was arrested three days later, on June 18.  Faulkner

has not yet been indicted, and he is not yet set for trial.2

Following his arrest, Faulkner appeared before a magistrate judge on July 12 and 16,

2018 for a detention hearing.3  The government presented three witnesses: Brandon Scott 

(“Special Agent Scott”), who is a Special Agent with the U.S. Department of Homeland

Security Federal Protective Service and a Task Force Officer with the Federal Bureau of

Investigation (“FBI”) Joint Terrorism Task Force; James Roberts Bridges (“Special Agent

Bridges”), a Special Agent with the FBI; and Ronald Leazer III (“Special Agent Leazer”),

a Special Agent with the Internal Revenue Service Criminal Investigation Division. 

Together, they testified about the circumstances surrounding Faulkner’s arrest.

Special Agent Scott testified that an FBI Confidential Human Source (“CHS”) was

contacted by an individual the CHS knows as “Bennie” in Beirut, Lebanon.  According to

2The undersigned is hearing this matter as the duty judge.  If Faulkner is indicted by
the grand jury, his case will be randomly assigned to a district judge.

3The hearing commenced on July 12, 2018.  At the conclusion of the government’s
case, Faulkner requested a continuance of the hearing so that his witness would be available
to testify.  The magistrate judge granted the request and completed the hearing on July 16,
2018.

- 2 -
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Agent Scott’s testimony, Bennie informed the CHS in October 2017 that Faulkner—a friend

of Bennie’s—needed help fleeing the United States to avoid legal trouble.  Bennie informed

the CHS that he was working with Carole Faulkner (“Carole”), Faulkner’s mother and

former attorney, to find living arrangements for Faulkner in Lebanon.4  Carole traveled to

Lebanon in April 2018.  Shortly thereafter, Carole’s house in Colleyville, Texas was listed

for sale, and Bennie later asked the CHS if he was interested in buying Carole’s house. 

Carole has failed to board two return flights to the United States, and is believed to still be

in Lebanon.

Special Agent Leazer and Special Agent Bridges testified that, on May 2, 2018, the

government met with Faulkner’s current counsel for a reverse proffer to preview the

government’s case against Faulkner and the applicable sentencing guidelines.  The

government explained that, under the guidelines, Faulkner could face a life sentence. 

Faulkner was vacationing in Mexico and not present at this meeting.  He returned to the

United States three days later.  On May 16, Bennie sent the CHS a message on

WhatsApp—an encrypted messaging application—asking if there were any arrest warrants

or flight risk alerts on Faulkner.  He included in his message a picture of Faulkner’s current

passport.

4Carole is alleged to have conspired with Faulkner in his illicit financial dealings.  For
example, in an SEC civil enforcement action against Faulkner, this court held Carole and
Faulkner in civil contempt for their failure to turn over receivership assets.  See SEC v.
Faulkner, 2018 WL 888910, at *12 (N.D. Tex. Feb. 13, 2018) (Fitzwater, J.).  Carole and
Faulkner both repeatedly asserted their Fifth Amendment rights against self-incrimination
during the contempt hearing.
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The government gave Faulkner a plea offer—which included a term of

imprisonment—on June 4.  Faulkner’s deadline to respond was eventually extended to June

22.  On June 14, however, the government discovered that Faulkner had booked a round trip

ticket to London, departing June 18.  The next day, the government filed a criminal

complaint and obtained an arrest warrant.  Faulkner was arrested at the Los Angeles

International Airport as he attempted to board his flight to London.  When arrested, Faulkner

was carrying 10 one-once gold bars, gold coins, $10,726.00 in cash, two brand-new cell

phones, and his birth certificate.

Faulkner presented a private investigator as his own witness at the detention hearing. 

The private investigator testified that Faulkner was leaving for a business meeting in London

when he was arrested, and intended to return to the United States, as demonstrated by the

return ticket that he had purchased.  The private investigator further testified that he believed

that Faulkner did not present a flight risk.  He pointed to the facts that Faulkner was in

Mexico when he learned of the government’s charges, yet chose to return to the United

States; that Faulkner was traveling with light luggage when arrested; and that Faulkner had

filed a complaint with the Department of Homeland Security to resolve being recurrently

screened when he returned to the United States from international travel.

Following the detention hearing, the magistrate judge ordered Faulkner detained,

finding by a preponderance of evidence that no condition or combination of conditions

would reasonably assure Faulkner’s appearance as required.  The magistrate judge noted,

- 4 -
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inter alia, on the order of detention pending trial that the lengthy period of incarceration that

Faulkner faced if convicted and Faulkner’s significant family or other ties outside the United

States supported this finding.  Faulkner now moves to revoke the detention order under 18

U.S.C. § 3145(b) and to be released on conditions while awaiting trial.

II

An individual shall be released pending trial unless a judicial officer finds that “no

condition or combination of conditions will reasonably assure the appearance of the person

as required and the safety of any other person and the community.”  18 U.S.C. § 3142(e)(1). 

Because the court is ordering Faulkner detained on the basis that he is a flight risk, it need

not decide whether he presents a risk to the safety of any other persons and the community. 

See United States v. Fortna, 769 F.2d 243, 249 (5th Cir. 1985) (“[T]he lack of reasonable

assurance of either the defendant’s appearance or the safety of others or the community is

sufficient [to detain a defendant without bond]; both are not required.”).  The court applies

a preponderance of the evidence standard when determining whether Faulkner is a flight

risk.  See id at 250.5  “[I]n determining whether there are conditions of release that will

reasonably assure the appearance of the person as required and the safety of any other person

and the community,” a court must consider: 

5The court applies a clear and convincing evidence standard when determining that
no condition or combination of conditions will reasonably assure the safety of the
community. See 18 U.S.C. § 3142(f)(2) (“The facts the judicial officer uses to support a
finding pursuant to subsection (e) that no condition or combination of conditions will
reasonably assure the safety of any other person and the community shall be supported by
clear and convincing evidence.”).
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(1) the nature and circumstances of the offense charged . . . ; (2)
the weight of the evidence against the person; (3) the history
and characteristics of the person . . . ; and (4) the nature and
seriousness of the danger to any person or the community that
would be posed by the person’s release.

18 U.S.C. § 3142(g).

III

Faulkner maintains that the government’s evidence that he is a flight risk relies on

“faulty assumptions and uncorroborated hearsay statements.”  D. Mot. 3.  He contends that

his own evidence, including the fact that he returned from Mexico despite knowing that the

government intended to charge him with a crime, demonstrates that he would comply with

any combination of conditions the court deems appropriate to assure his appearance at future

proceedings.  The government responds that the magistrate judge correctly determined that

Faulkner presents a flight risk, emphasizing that Faulkner is facing a lengthy period of

incarceration; that he made plans to leave the United States for Lebanon; that his mother,

Carole, remains in Lebanon; and that Faulkner has a history of disregarding this court’s

orders.

Following a de novo review of the evidence presented at the detention hearing, the

court finds that the government has proved by a preponderance of the evidence that no

condition or combination of conditions will reasonably assure Faulkner’s appearance as

required.  The totality of the § 3142(g) factors demonstrate that Faulkner is a flight risk.

Regarding the nature and circumstances of the offense charged, Faulkner is accused

- 6 -
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of multiple financial crimes that, as a result of the amount of money allegedly defrauded,

could result in a life sentence.  Regarding the weight of the evidence, the government’s

agents testified in detail about the alleged scheme that Faulkner operated.  No party has

maintained that the fourth factor—“the nature and seriousness of the danger to any person

or the community that would be posed by the person’s release”—is applicable to Faulkner. 

In this case the third factor—the history and characteristics of the

defendant—overwhelmingly favors detention.  Based on the evidence developed at the

hearing, it is reasonable to draw the inference that Faulkner had been making plans to flee

to Lebanon.  Given Carole and Faulkner’s history of working together in various schemes,

the court finds credible the government’s evidence that Carole has been conspiring with

Faulkner to amass assets in Lebanon.  With Carole in Lebanon, Faulkner has significant

family ties outside the United States.  Moreover, as the magistrate judge noted, Faulkner has

few permanent ties to the United States—he has no personal bank accounts in his name, no

residential lease or property in his name, and owns little property that has not yet been seized

or liquidated.

The evidence also strongly suggests that Faulkner was arrested while attempting to

flee.  As established above, Faulkner is facing a lengthy prison term if convicted. The timing

of the government’s reverse proffer, Bennie’s request regarding any arrest warrants or flight

risk warnings pertaining to Faulkner, and Faulkner’s subsequent purchase of a plane ticket

to London is therefore remarkably suspect.  Beyond this, Faulkner was arrested in possession
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of a substantial amount of cash, gold, two newly-purchased phones, and his birth certificate.

When considered together, the evidence indicates that Faulkner was arrested while

attempting to act on his preparations to flee the country.

Faulkner’s argument that his return from Mexico demonstrates that he is not a flight

risk is unavailing.  The government presented credible evidence that Faulkner and Carole

had prepared to avoid prosecution by fleeing to Lebanon well before Faulkner took his

vacation in Mexico.  The decision to return to the United States before ultimately fleeing to

Lebanon is consistent with such preparations.

Finally, Faulkner has a well-established record of disregarding court orders.  In the

SEC’s civil enforcement action against him, Faulkner has been held in civil contempt for

attempting to redirect and withhold receivership assets, despite a court order directing that

the assets be frozen and turned over to the Receiver.  See SEC v. Faulkner, 2018 WL

888910, at *14 (N.D. Tex. Feb. 13, 2018) (Fitzwater, J.).  The court also held Carole in civil

contempt for knowingly aiding and abetting Faulkner. Id. at *16.  Similarly, in a different

civil case, Faulkner was sanctioned for altering digital discovery records to conceal the

existence of a particular computer from the opposing party.  See T & E Inv. Grp. LLC v.

Faulkner, 2014 WL 550596, at *5-6 (N.D. Tex. Feb. 12, 2014) (Solis, J.).  Faulkner offers

no evidence to assure the court that his attitude toward court orders would improve were the

court to release him subject to conditions.  And based on the court’s experience in the civil

enforcement action, it is highly doubtful that his attitude would improve. 

- 8 -
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Accordingly, the court holds that the government has proved by a preponderance of

the evidence that no condition or combination of conditions will reasonably assure

Faulkner’s appearance as required.

IV

For the reasons explained, Faulkner’s July 30, 2018 motion to revoke the magistrate

judge’s detention order is denied. The court orders that Faulkner be held without bond

pending trial as follows.  He is committed to the custody of the Attorney General for

confinement in a corrections facility separate, to the extent practicable, from persons

awaiting or serving sentences or being held in custody pending appeal.  He is to be afforded

reasonable opportunity for private consultation with his counsel.  By order of this court, to

be issued in the future, the person in charge of the corrections facility in which Faulkner is

confined is to deliver him to a United States Marshal for the purpose of appearing in

connection with any court proceeding.

 SO ORDERED.

August 2, 2018.

_________________________________
SIDNEY A. FITZWATER
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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Secretary of State 

Certificate of Dissolution 
(California Stock Corporation ONLY) 

DISS STK 

IMPORTANT - Read Instructions before completing this form. 

There is No fee for filing a Certificate of Dissolution - Stock 

Copy Fees- First page $1.00; each attachment page $0.50; 
Certification Fee - $5.00 plus copy fees 

01535952 

FILl:1.J ~/#--

Secretary of State 
state of California 

OCT O 7 2019 
@ 

This Space For Office Use Only 

1. Corporate Name (Enter the exact name of the Corporation as it is recorded 2. 7•Digit Secretary of State File Number 
with the califomia Secretary of State.) 

FIRST CAPITAL GOLD, INC. C4044168 

3. Election 

[21 The dissolution was made by a vote of ALL of the shareholders of the California corporation. 

Note: If the above box is not checked, a Certificate of Electlon to Wind Up and Dissolve {Fom1 ELEC STK) must be filed prior to 
or together wlth this Certificate of Dlssolution. {Califomla Corporations Code section 1901.) 

4. Debts and Llabllltlas (Check the applicable statement. Only one box may be checked. If second box is checked, must 
include the required information In an attachment.) 

D The known debts and liabilities have been actually paid or paid as far as its assets permitted. 

D The known debts and liabilities have been adequately provided for in full or as far as its assets permitted by their 
assumption. Included in the attachment to this certificate, incorporated herein by this reference, is a description 
of the provisions made and the name and address of the person, corporation or government agency that has 
assumed or guaranteed the payment. or the depository Institution with which deposit has been made. 

[21 The corporation never incurred any known debts or liabilities. 

5. Required Statements (Do not alter the Required Statements -ALL must be true to file Form DISS STK.) 

a. The Corporation has been completely wound up and is dissolved. 
b. All final returns required under the California Revenue and Taxation Code have been or will be filed with the 

California Franchise Tax Board. 
c. The known assets have been distributed to the persons entitled thereto or the corporation acquired no known 

assets. 

6. Read, Verify, Date and Sign Below (See Instruction& for signature requirements.) 

The undersigned is the sole 
under the laws of the Sta 
knowledge. 

# 
Date Signature 

Date Signature 

DISS STK (REV 12/2016) 

of the directors now in office. I declare under penalty of perjury 
alters set forth in this certificate are true and correct of my own 

Earl Davenport 
Type or Print Name 

Type or Print Name 

Type or Print Name 

2016 Califomia Secretary of State 
www.sos.ca.gov/business/be 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISION 
 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION, 
 Plaintiff,  
 
v. 
 
CHRISTOPHER A. FAULKNER, et al., 
 Defendants. 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
 

 
 
 
 
Case No.: 3:16-cv-01735-D 
 

 
ORDER GRANTING RECEIVER’S MOTION TO SUBSUME CERTAIN ASSETS 

INTO THE RECEIVERSHIP ESTATE FOR LIQUIDATION 
 

 
Before the Court is the October 11, 2021 Motion to Subsume Certain Assets into the 

Receivership Estate for Liquidation (“Motion”) of Court-appointed Receiver Thomas L. Taylor III 

(“Receiver”), and all opposition, responses or objections thereto, if any. Having determined that 

the Motion is fully supported by the written submissions, the Motion is hereby GRANTED in all 

respects. It is therefore 

ORDERED that the following assets (“Seized Assets”) are Receivership Assets and part 

of the Receivership Estate:  

• One Vacheron Constantin No. 143 Luxury Wristwatch; 

• $10,726 in U.S. paper currency; 

• Ten one-ounce gold bars; 

• One one-gram gold bar, contained on a blue wallet-sized card; and 

• Six gold coins. 

It is further  

ORDERED that the Receiver is no longer required to segregate the Seized Assets in a 

bank safe deposit box pursuant to a previous Order of this Court [ECF No. 390], and the Receiver 
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may liquidate the Seized Assets pursuant to this Court’s Third Amended Order Appointing 

Receiver [ECF No. 496].  

 

 

Signed on ________________________, 2021.  
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
SIDNEY A. FITZWATER 
SENIOR JUDGE  

 

 

Case 3:16-cv-01735-D   Document 632-3   Filed 10/11/21    Page 2 of 2   PageID 17822Case 3:16-cv-01735-D   Document 632-3   Filed 10/11/21    Page 2 of 2   PageID 17822


	A. Background
	B. Argument and Authority
	C. Requested Relief



